A Christ-centred school with a child-centred curriculum

Special Educational Needs, Inclusion and Disability (SEND) Policy.

Contents:

Section 1:

- 1.1 Overview
- 1.2 Inclusion Manager
- 1.3 Headlines from the 2014 SEND Code of Practice
- 1.4 Defining SEN

Section 2:

- 2.1 Objectives
- 2.2 Identifying Children at SENS (SEN Support)
- 2.3 Working with parents and pupils
- 2.4 Systems for Monitoring Children at SEN Support (SENS)
- 2.5 Moving to EHCP (Education, Health and Care Plan)

Section 3:

- 3.1 SENS Teaching, Learning and the Curriculum
- 3.2 Access to Extra-Curricular Activities
- 3.3 Staff Training and SEND Expertise
- 3.4 Children with Social, Emotional and Mental Health Needs
- 3.5 Transition Arrangements
- 3.6 Children with Disabilities
- 3.7 Disapplication and Modification
- 3.8 Summary

Section 4

- 4.1 Inclusion
- 4.2 Social Inclusion
- 4.3 Groups at particular risk
- 4.4 Handling signs of disaffection
- 4.5 Managing disruptive behaviour
- 4.6 Governors
- 4.7 Complaints
- 4.8 West Sussex Local Authority Local Offer
- 4.9 Equal Opportunities
- 4.10 Review Framework

Section 1:

1.1 OVERVIEW

St Mary's C of E (Aided) Primary School is an inclusive school. All children may have special needs at some time and therefore a wide range of strategies must be used to meet these needs as they arise. This policy will ensure that the school meets the needs of pupils identified as having a Special Educational Need or Disability (SEND). It will ensure that pupils with SEND or disability are not discriminated against. This policy outlines why, when and how additional provision will be made for these pupils. The policy describes systems in place for monitoring and reporting on the progress of pupils who have been identified with SEND. All school policies are interlinked and should be read and informed by all other policies. In particular the SEND policy is linked to behaviour, inclusion, anti-bullying, medical, Single Equality Policy, safeguarding and curriculum policies.

St Mary's Primary School is part of The Weald Locality, a group of 11 Primary Schools who work together to improve outcomes for children including those with SEND. The Inclusion Manager/SENDCo attends Locality Meetings twice termly to further develop expertise, skills and knowledge with regard to SEND. St Mary's Primary School has produced a Local Offer on our website which answers questions, and describes provision, for pupils with SEND in our school. A Local offer has been produced at by West Sussex Local Authority describing provision available within the County. The school also has a School Information Report which can be found on our website. This is updated annual with a team of parents whose children have a Special Educational Need.

1.2 INCLUSION MANAGER

Enquiries about an individual child's progress should be addressed in the first instance to the child's teacher. The school has an 'open door' policy and teachers are available to meet with parents to discuss concerns. Other enquiries can be addressed to Mrs Samantha Copus (Inclusion Manager).

Mrs Copus is an experienced teacher and the deputy head and holds a BEd (Hons), PGCE and NPQH. She has been at St Mary's School for 12 years. Mrs Copus is a member of the Senior Management Team and works closely with all teachers within school. Mrs Copus, in conjunction with Governors and the Head teacher, oversees SEND provision and resourcing in school, including SEND teaching assistant allocation. Please make an appointment, or make a request, at the school office to meet with Mrs Copus.

1.3 HEADLINES FROM THE 2014 CODE OF PRACTICE

- No more Statements will be issued by the Local Authority. Statements have been replaced by Education, Health and Care Plans (EHC) which can be used to support children from birth to 25 years.
- School Action and School Action Plus have been replaced with one school-based category of need known as 'Special Education Needs Support' (SENS). All children are closely monitored and their progress tracked each term. Those children at SENS also have their progress tracked by the Inclusion Manager.
- There are four broad categories of need:
 - 1. communication and interaction
 - 2. cognition and learning
 - 3. social, emotional and mental health
 - 4. physical and sensory

We have children in all categories of SEN.

 School is working even more closely with parents and children to ensure that the child's own views, and parent's experience of their child, are taken into account in meeting individual needs. Parents are invited by letter to be involved at every stage of planning and reviewing SEN provision for their child.

- All children benefit from 'Quality First Teaching'. This means that teachers expect to assess, plan and teach all children at the level which allows them to make progress with their learning. In addition we implement some focused interventions to target particular skills.
- We have high expectations of all of our children. Children on our SEND list make progress which
 usually compares well with the progress made by other children.

1.4 DEFINING SEND

The 2014 SEND Code of Practice (COP) says that:

A person has SEN if they have a learning difficulty or disability which calls for special educational provision to be made for him or her. At compulsory school age this means he or she has a significantly greater difficulty in learning than the majority of others of the same age, or has a disability which prevents or hinders him or her from making use of facilities of a kind generally provided for others of the same age in mainstream schools.

(SEN COP Introduction xiii and xiv)

Section 2:

2.1 OBJECTIVES

- to identify, at the earliest opportunity, barriers to learning and enable participation for pupils with SEND.
- to ensure all staff are aware of the principles of the SEND COP and the procedures for identifying, assessing, monitoring and reviewing the needs of pupils on the SEN list.
- to ensure that every child experiences a differentiated curriculum, success in their learning and achieves to the highest possible standard.
- to provide intervention programmes which meet individual needs and provide both challenge and success.
- to involve pupils in planning and reviewing their learning experiences.
- to empower children to become independent learners and communicators.
- to encourage the contribution of all children according to the Christian values of the school.
- to work in partnership with parents, involving them in planning and reviewing their child's additional support in school.
- to provide a secure, safe and caring environment for all pupils in school including those with a SEND.
- to work with the governing body to enable them to fulfill their statutory monitoring role with regard to the Policy for SEND.
- to work closely with external support agencies, where appropriate, to support the needs of individual pupils.
- to ensure that all staff have access to training and advice to support quality teaching and learning for all pupils.

Approximately 10-15 % are placed at SENS (SEN Support) or have existing EHC plans (Education, Health and Care Plans). This means that all teachers expect to have children with SEND in their classes. Types of SEND which we currently have in school (September 2016) include children with a diagnosis as well as those with learning profiles consistent with a diagnosis of:

- 1. Communication and interaction: autistic spectrum and language difficulties
- 2. Cognition and learning: dyslexia, dyscalculia, learning difficulties, global delay.
- 3. Social, emotional and mental health: ADHD, emotional difficulties.
- 4. Physical and sensory: visual and hearing impairment.

2.2 IDENTIFYING CHILDREN AT SENS (SEN SUPPORT)

Children at SENS are usually identified by one of the following routes which are part of the overall approach to monitoring the progress of all pupils:

- The progress of every child is monitored termly by their class teacher. Where children are not making progress in spite of 'Quality First Teaching' they are discussed with the Inclusion Manager at a termly 'Progress Meeting' and a plan of action is agreed.
- Class teachers are continually aware of children's learning. If the class teacher observes that a child, as recommended in the 2014 Code of Practice, is making less than expected progress, given their age and particular circumstances, they will seek to identify a cause. This can be characterised by progress which:
 - 1. Is significantly slower than that of their peers from the same baseline.
 - 2. Fails to match or better the child's previous rate of progress.
 - 3. Fails to close the attainment gap between the child and their peers.
- Parents sometimes ask school to look more closely at their child's learning. We take all parent
 requests seriously and investigate them all. Frequently the concern can be addressed by 'Quality
 First Teaching' and / or some parent support. Otherwise the teacher and Inclusion Manager will work
 with parents and pupils to review the situation and take further action which might include placing the
 pupil on the SEND List.
- Progress reviews will also result in a child being removed from SENS. Parents will be consulted and class teachers will continue to closely monitor their progress.

The Inclusion Manager and/ or class teacher may undertake pupil assessments which will add to and inform the teacher's understanding of a pupil's strengths and areas of need. The Inclusion Manager, working closely with parents, is able to seek outside agency advice where this is an appropriate course of action. Although the school can identify special educational needs and make provision to meet those needs, we are unable to make diagnoses. Parents are advised to seek medical advice with reference to conditions as ADHD and Autism. The school can offer support, advice and 'signposting' to parents who have concerns relating to their child's medical needs.

2.3 WORKING WITH PARENTS AND PUPILS

We aim to have positive, informative relationships with all of our parents. The school is proud of the 'open door' policy we maintain at St Mary's School in being available to meet with parents as soon as any concern arises. If a child is experiencing difficulties, parents will be informed either at termly parents' meetings or during informal meetings to discuss the child's progress. A parent will always be informed, by the class teacher or Inclusion Manager, if a child has been identified as having an additional SEND and requires some support in their learning.

Once a child has been identified as having a SEN, the class teacher and Inclusion Manager will invite parents to school to:

- Let them know that that their child is being placed at SENS.
- Discuss any assessments, strengths and difficulties relating to their child.
- Share and contribute to an Individual Learning Plan (ILP) for the next term.
- Share an Individual Provision Map detailing provision and support in school.

This is part of the graduated approach and cycle of 'Assess, Plan, Do, Review' required in the Code of Practice 2014.

Pupils opinions are sought and recorded as part of the ILP process.

Records are kept of these meetings and are available to parents.

Thereafter, parents and children are invited to a meeting at least each term to review progress made, set targets and agree provision for the next term.

2.4 SYSTEMS FOR MONITORING CHILDREN AT SEN SUPPORT (SENS)

Once a child has been identified as needing SENS, the following systems for monitoring support are put in place.

- A one page 'Individual Pupil Profile', or depending on need a lengthier 'Pupil Passport', will be completed with pupil and class teacher. This will be shared with parents during parent liaison meetings described above. This document will include their strengths, interests, what they enjoy about school, what they find challenging and what helps them to achieve.
- An Individual Learning Plan (ILP) is produced, as described above, for each child on SENS. The plan records specific and challenging outcomes or targets for the child to achieve in a term.

Personalised provision is recorded on this plan and may be in small group work and/or support to access a differentiated curriculum. The day to day implementation of this plan is the responsibility of the class teacher who will work closely with support staff to record progress towards targets and outcomes during the term. Longer term targets will be broken down into smaller steps. The ILP is reviewed termly and parents and pupils are invited to be part of this process. After the initial ILP has been discussed with parents they are invited by letter to come into school to be part of the consultation and review process and the start and end of each term. There is also an opportunity to discuss your child's ILP at termly parents' evenings.

- A Provision Map, detailing provision in school, is provided for parents each term.
- The Inclusion Manager meets half termly with class teachers and their support staff to discuss the ILP in place in each class.
- If an outside agency e.g. educational psychologist, speech and language therapist is involved with a pupil the Inclusion Manager will always involve parents in the process. The Inclusion Manager will ensure reports or assessments are copied to parents and teachers. Advice and suggestions from outside agency advice is incorporated as outcomes or targets on the pupil's ILP.
- The school record keeping system (SIMS) is used for maintaining all SEND records and parents may request copies of information / reports.

2.5 MOVING TO EHCP (EDUCATION, HEALTH AND CARE PLAN)

If children fail to make progress over time, in spite of high quality, targeted support at SENS, we may apply for the child to be assessed for an EHC plan. Generally we apply for an EHC Plan if:

- The child is Looked After and therefore may be additionally vulnerable.
- The child has a disability which is lifelong and which means that they will always need support to learn effectively.
- The child's achievements are so far below their peers that we think it likely that the child may at some point benefit from special school provision.

Children who, with support, will achieve well in mainstream school are less often assessed for EHC Plans. A child having a diagnosis (e.g. ASD, ADHD or dyslexia) does not mean that a child requires an EHC. If the application for an EHC Plan is successful, a member of the Local Authority (LA) will call a meeting for parents, the child and the school together with any health or social care professionals who are involved with the family. The meeting will record the child's strengths, hopes, aspirations and barriers to their learning. Following the meeting the LA will produce the EHC plan which will record the decisions made at the meeting.

Section 3:

3.1 SENS – TEACHING, LEARNING AND THE CURRICULUM

- We believe that all children learn best when they are included with the rest of their class. Our aim is for all children to be working independently in class, reaching their full potential.
- All children, including those with children with SEND, are taught by their teacher as well as being supported by teaching assistants.
- Teachers aim to spend time each day working, in a group, with all children with SEN.
- When allocating additional teaching assistant support to children the focus is on outcomes. We aim to allocate sufficient adult assistance to enable each child to reach challenging targets without developing a learned dependence on adult support.
- Targets for children at SENS are set to be challenging in an attempt to close the attainment gap
 between the children and their peers. Interventions are often crucial in closing these gaps and are
 therefore used as a strategy in class. The intervention is monitored by the class teacher and pupil
 progress towards set objectives is kept under review. The Inclusion Manager, working alongside the
 class teacher, monitors overall progress following completion of the intervention.
- The school has a range of interventions which are identified on the pupil ILP and/or Provision Map.
 When considering an intervention we look at the child's learning need in order that we can match
 the intervention to the child. Interventions are planned in blocks of up to 10 weeks. Progress made
 in these interventions is recorded and assessed. A decision is made as to whether to continue,
 change or cease the intervention according to the child's progress against targets set.
- The Learning Environment:

- 1. St Mary's Cof E Primary School is a 'disability friendly' school. The school building is one level, corridors in the new part of the building are wide and we have two easy access toilets. The school also has a hygiene room. We generally find that no additional adaptations to the building are necessary for children or stakeholders with disabilities.
- 2. Other adaptions to the physical environment will be made, as appropriate, to children with other sensory disabilities.
- 3. All our classrooms are inclusion friendly: we aim to teach in a way that will support children with tendencies towards conditions such as dyslexia, dyspraxia, ADHD, ASD.

Our school currently holds the following externally validated awards: Inclusion Quality Mark / Dyslexia Friendly School Award / Autism Aware Award

Curriculum:

All of our children access the full National Curriculum, and we recognise achievement and expertise in all curricular areas. As part of normal class differentiation, curriculum content and ideas can be made more accessible. This accessibility is made possible by skilled support, effective use of scaffolding as well as provision of visual, auditory, tactile and concrete resources.

3.2 ACCESS TO EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

All of our children have equal access to lunchtime clubs, after school clubs and support activities which develop engagement with the wider curriculum. Where necessary, we make accommodation and adaption to meet the physical and learning needs of our children. Class educational visits and residential visits are part of our curriculum and we aim for all children to be included in all of them. No child is excluded from an educational visit and residential visit because of SEN, disability or medical needs.

3.3 STAFF TRAINING AND SEND EXPERTISE

All of our teachers are trained in school to work with children with SEND. Some have more experience than others in this area. All teachers have access to advice, information, resources and training to enable them to teach all children effectively. We incorporate SEND training into our whole school staff training programme. This will include training from outside agencies, such as the speech and language therapy service, as well as training from within school resources and self-help opportunities.

Teaching assistants also have access to 'in-house' training as well as opportunities to attend training provided by external agencies.

The Inclusion Manager offers training and advice in school as well as sharing resources and disseminating information relating to SEND issues.

The school is able to access expert advice and support from the Local Authority (e.g. Educational Psychologist, Learning Support Service and Sensory Support Service). The school can access support and advice from Speech Therapy Service and School Nurses for medical advice and expertise. School can also opt to buy-in additional training and/or advice from a variety of independent sources.

3.4 CHILDREN WITH SOCIAL, EMOTIONAL AND MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS

A behaviour difficulty is not classified a SEND. If a child shows consistent, unwanted behaviours, the class teacher will assess the child's needs. This will involve working with the family to explore any circumstances, or history of experiences, which may impact on a child's behaviour. If the child's behaviour is felt to be a response to trauma or to home-based experiences we will work with the family to explore options for support. This may involve working with the family and other outside agencies such as social care, Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Child Development Centre (CDC) or medical professionals.

If parents and school are concerned that the child may have mental health needs, the school would 'signpost' parents to their GP or the School Nurse for a possible referral to an appropriate health professional.

If the child is felt to have long term emotional or mental health needs – for example with anxiety or anger management – the school offers a range of interventions to develop social skills or emotional resilience. The school has two Learning Mentors who provide this type of support, developing trusting relationships with specific children. The school also offers play therapy to a small number of children.

3.5 TRANSITION ARRANGEMENTS

Transition into school:

We acknowledge that children and parents sometimes find transition into a new school or a new class quite challenging and this is particularly challenging for parents of pupils with SEN or disability. This process can also be difficult for the children themselves.

The School support includes:

- 1. Prior to entry to school meeting for new parents attended by class teachers, support staff, Inclusion Manager
- 2. Meetings with Inclusion Manager / class teacher and parent as required.
- 3. Inclusion Manager and class teachers visiting pre-school settings
- 4. Inclusion Manager liaising with outside agencies.
- 5. Additional visits to school as required for parents and pupil.
- 6. Transition information booklet compiled by Y2 pupils for YR
- Transition within school:
 - 1. Additional visits to new classroom.
 - 2. Transition booklet with photographs of new class / key people.
 - 3. Pupil Passports and Individual Profiles to pass from class to class.
- Transition within secondary phase:
 - 1. Annual Review Meetings (existing Statements and EHCPs) for Year 6 pupils are held in the Spring or Summer Term of Y5. Secondary school staff are invited to attend.
 - 2. A programme of additional visits to secondary school for vulnerable pupils. Support groups with Learning Mentors. Booklets to support transition.

3.6 CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES

From time to time some children in our school may have disabilities and consequently need additional resources. The school is committed to providing an environment that allows these children full access to all areas of learning. All our classroom entrances are wide enough for wheelchair access and the designated points of entry to our school also allow wheelchair access.

Teachers modify teaching and learning as appropriate for these children. For example, they may give additional time to children with disabilities to complete certain activities. In their planning teachers ensure that they give children with disabilities the opportunity to develop skills in practical aspects of the curriculum.

Teachers ensure that the work for these children:

- takes account of their pace of learning and the equipment they use;
- takes account of the effort and concentration needed in oral work, or when using, for example, vision aids;
- is adapted or offers alternative activities in those subjects where children are unable to manipulate tools or equipment, or use certain types of materials;
- allows opportunities for them to take part in educational visits and other activities linked to their studies:
- includes approaches that allow hearing-impaired children to learn about sound in science and music, and visually-impaired children to learn about light in science, and to use visual resources and images both in art and design and in design and technology;
- uses assessment techniques that reflect their individual needs and abilities.

3.7 DISAPPLICATION AND MODIFICATION

The school can, where necessary, modify or disapply the National Curriculum and its assessment arrangements. Our school policy is to do this only in exceptional circumstances. The school makes every effort to meet the learning needs of all its children without recourse to disapplication or modification. We achieve this through greater differentiation of the child's work, or through provision of additional learning resources. When necessary, we also support learning through appropriate external specialists. In such cases, teachers work closely with these agencies to support the child.

In exceptional circumstances we may decide that modification or disapplication is the correct procedure to follow. We would only do this after details consultation with parents and the Local Education Authority. The school's governor with responsibility for special needs would also be closely involved in this process. We would ensure that every effort had been make to provide the necessary support within the school's resources before considering such action.

Should we go ahead with modification or disapplication, we would do so through:

- Section 364 of the Education Act 1996. This allows modification or disapplication of the National Curriculum, or elements of it, through a statement of special educational needs;
- Section 365 of the Education Act 1996. This allows the temporary modification or disapplication of the National Curriculum, or elements of it.

3.7 SUMMARY

In our school the teaching and learning, achievements, attitudes and well-being of every child are important. We follow the necessary regulations to ensure that we take the experiences and needs of all our children into account when planning for learning.

Section 4:

4.1 INCLUSION

We achieve educational inclusion by continually reviewing what we do, through asking ourselves these key questions:

- do all our children achieve as much as they can?
- are there differences in the achievement of different groups of children?
- what are we doing for those children who we know are not achieving their best?
- Are our actions effective?

Teaching and learning style

(See also the school policies on Able Children, Teaching and Learning Policy, Single Equality Policy and Equal Opportunities).

- a. We aim to give all our children the opportunity to succeed and reach the highest level of personal achievement. When planning their work, teachers take into account the abilities of all of their children. For some children, we use the programmes of study from earlier year group expecatations. This enables some of our children to make progress in their own lessons, perhaps after significant amount of time spent away from school.
- b. When the attainment of a child falls significantly below the expected age related expectation, teachers enable to child to succeed by planning work that is in line with that child's individual needs .
- c. Where the attainment of a child significantly exceeds the expected age related expectation, teachers embed the learning further, or extend the breadth of work within the area or areas for which the child shows particular aptitude.
- d. Teachers are familiar with the relevant equal opportunities legislation covering race, gender and disability.

- e. Teachers ensure that children:
 - feel secure and know that their contributions are valued;
 - appreciate and value the differences they see in others;
 - take responsibility for their own actions;
 - participate safely in clothing that is appropriate to their religious beliefs;
 - are taught in groupings that allow them all to experience success;
 - use materials that reflect a range of social and cultural backgrounds, without stereotyping;
 - have a common curriculum experience that allows for a range of different learning styles;
 - have challenging targets that enable them to succeed;
 - are encouraged to participate fully, regardless of disabilities or medical needs.

4.2 SOCIAL INCLUSION

Key Principles

- At St Mary's we believe that good habits should be set early and pupils should be encouraged to attend regularly, be punctual and exhibit good behaviour. Parents will always be involved in this process.
- Prompt early intervention is necessary as poor behaviour or unexplained absence will not be tolerated
- Positive achievement is recognised and individual, class or year group achievements are recognised in assembly, good attendance and behaviour are celebrated with the issue of certificates.
- Circle time is used regularly throughout the school, which supports behaviour management techniques. Assertive discipline is used; our policy aims to improve and maintain a high standard of behaviour and discipline.
- Home school agreements, newsletters and parents' meetings are used as tools to work closely with parents.
- Involving pupils with reinforcing and creating school rules and behaviour policies. Active
 involvement in anti-bullying policies, pupils gain responsibility through Playtime Pals and the school
 council.
- Whole school commitment to equal opportunities for all pupils.
- Individual pupil's needs are focused through careful monitoring and assessment, identifying special needs groups and booster needs
- Study support, the school provides regular homework and uses brain gym techniques. We provide
 information evenings and booklets for parents so that they may work more closely with their children
 in schoolwork.

4.3 GROUPS AT PARTICULAR RISK

Certain pupils are at particular risk:

- Those with special educational needs Early identification of special needs is essential. Liaison with SENCO once difficulties are identified and preventative measures put in place.
- Children in the local authority care Good quality liaison with social services and child protection officer.
- Minority ethnic children Staff awareness of need to monitor racial harassment, good quality home school liaison, and ethnic monitoring of achievement.
- Those from families under stress Home circumstances to be sensitively managed and taken into account.

4.4 HANDLING SIGNS OF DISAFFECTION

Irregular attendance and truancy

Children who do not attend school without authorisation are putting themselves at risk. Parents have the primary responsibility to ensure that their children attend school regularly. School office staff contact parents on the day a registered pupil is absent without explanation. Unauthorised absence is taken seriously.

Parents are contacted to make appointments to discuss concerns. Term time holiday forms need to be completed by parents and the school monitors term time holidays rigorously. Those pupils who attend regularly are praised publicly and certificates are presented to them. The profile of attendance is raised regularly through newsletters or other communication. School statement regarding absence and term time holidays are regularly sent to parents.

4.5 MANAGING DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOUR

The school will work with parents in order to agree further action. A written behaviour contract will be put in place, making clear to everyone what is expected. Regular reminders take place re expectations and examples of good behaviour in class and assemblies.

Rewards should be tangible and achievable and agreed before the plan is put into action.

The school behaviour policy operates to support pupils and staff in dealing with behaviour issues. Sanctions are fair and consistently applied, taking into account the child's age and within the context of positive reinforcement of good behaviour.

Sanctions may include:

- Removal from group
- Withdrawal of break or lunchtime privileges
- Withholding participation in school visits/activities that are not an essential part of the school curriculum
- Withdrawal from particular lesson of peer group
- Complete of assigned work
- Carrying out useful tasks in school.

4.6 GOVERNORS

It is the statutory duty of the governors to ensure that the school follows its responsibilities to meet the needs of the children with SEND following the Code of Practice 2014.

The Governor with particular responsibility for SEND is Mrs Victoria Russell. They meet the Inclusion Manager at least termly to discuss actions and provision in school relating to SEND.

The governors produce a statutory SEND Information Report which is on the School website.

4.7 COMPLAINTS

The school aims to work in partnership with parents to ensure a collaborative approach to meeting pupils' needs.

All complaints are taken seriously and are heard through the school's complaints policy and procedure.

4.8 WEST SUSSEX LOCAL AUTHORITY LOCAL OFFER

The purpose of the Local Offer is to enable parents and young people to see more clearly what services are available in their area and how to access them. It includes provision from birth to 25 across education, health and social care. This Local Offer can be found at https://westsussex.local-offer.org/ or on the school website.

4.9 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The school is committed to providing equal opportunities for all in all aspects of school, regardless of race, faith, gender or capability. We promote self and mutual respect and a caring non-judgmental attitude throughout the school. The school website has our Disability Equality Scheme/Accessibility Plan (DES/AP).

4.10 REVIEW FRAMEWORK

The policy will be reviewed annually (or sooner in the event of revised legislation or guidance)

Signed: Head teacher Date:

Signed: Chair of Governors Date:

Date Completed: November 2014

Completed by: Mrs Samantha Copus (Inclusion Manager)

Reviewed: September 2016

Next review date: September 2017